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Safe Driving Tips
 




Disclaimer: While the Department for Transport (DfT) has 

made every effort to ensure the information in this document 

is accurate, DfT does not guarantee the accuracy, 

completeness or usefulness of that information; and it 

cannot accept liability for any loss or damages of any kind 

resulting from reliance on the information or guidance this 

document contains. 
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1 Why Should You Care? 
 

The consequences of not driving safely range from the 

inconvenient to the catastrophic. Over 7,500 van and truck 

drivers and passengers are injured in road accidents each 

year - and over 100 of these are killed. 

As a professional driver you have a special responsibility 

not just to yourself but also to other road users. You can 

meet that responsibility and set a good example by driving 

safely.     

Your employer should ensure that the vehicles you use are 

safe and properly maintained. Or you may be self-employed 

and therefore responsible for the maintenance of your own 

vehicle(s). However, a well maintained vehicle is not in itself 

enough to ensure safety. It’s up to you as a driver to: 

Check your vehicle daily
 


Know your route
 


Be aware of weather forecasts
 


Drive safely
 


Remember - Professional Drivers are Champions of 

Safety. 
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1.1 How Will This Guide Help? 
 

This guide is for you - the professional driver. It offers simple 

advice to help: 

Reduce the potential for injury to yourself
 


Reduce the potential for injury to others
 


Reduce the number of accidents you are involved in
 


Reduce congestion resulting from accidents
 


Save you and your employer money 
 

Reducing the risk of injury and improving safety is important 

for everyone but having the right advice to hand is 

sometimes difficult when you are out on the road. Carry this 

guide in your pocket or cab for quick reference. Keep it 

handy - and cut the risk of accidents. 

There are many guides, manuals and codes of practice 

available on specific aspects of transport. This guide is only 

a summary of the main safety topics - it isn’t comprehensive 

advice. Appendix 1 provides a list of useful organisations 

that can help you find more details. 

1.2 Freight Best Practice 

This booklet is part of a series of free publications produced 

for the Department for Transport (DfT) under the Freight 

Best Practice programme. 

The Freight Best Practice programme provides a wide range 

of free information to help you improve the efficiency of your 

business. For a full list of all the publications and for further 

information, call the Hotline on 0845 877 0 877 or visit the 

website at www.freightbestpractice.org.uk. 
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2 Professional Driving 
 

Driving a truck for a living is NOT the same as owning and 

driving your own car. Professional drivers are in a position of 

great responsibility. You require great skill to carry out your 

job and you are subject to stringent checks. 

2.1 Medical Requirements 

You are required to pass a number of medical tests, 

including an eye test - whether or not you wear glasses or 

contact lenses. Your initial test will have taken place when 

you applied for your first professional licence. A medical will 

also be required every 5 years after the age of 45 and 

annually from the age of 65. 

You must inform the Drivers’ Medical Unit at DVLA if you 

suffer a medical condition or disability that may affect your 

driving. You also have to tell them if you develop a new 

condition or disability or one that has become worse since 

your licence was issued. 

2.2 Drivers’ Hours 

Drivers’ hours are restricted for reasons of road safety, 

working conditions and fair competition. There are maximum 

limits on driving time and minimum requirements for breaks 

and rest periods. Various exemptions exist, some of which 

apply on UK journeys only. 

If you operate under the European Union (EU) drivers’ hours 

and tachograph rules, you will also be subject to the working 

time provisions of the Road Transport (Working Time) 

Regulations. If you do not fall under EU drivers’ hours and 
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tachograph rules, you will normally fall within the scope of 

separate UK legislation on these areas but will still be 

subject to certain aspects of the working time regulations. 

Find out which rules and regulations apply to you and make 

sure you keep proper records. 

For further information on drivers’ hours, visit 

www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/freight/road/workingtime/drivershou 

rsgoods.pdf 

For full details on the working time provisions for mobile 

workers, visit 

www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/freight/road/workingtime/rdtransport 

workingtimeguidance 

For details on the main working time provisions for drivers 

exempt from the EU drivers' hours and tachograph rules, 

visit www.berr.gov.uk/employment/employment

legislation/employment-guidance/page30342.html 

2.3 Sleepiness 

Professional driving can be hard work. If you start to feel 

sleepy while driving, find a safe place to stop (not the hard 

shoulder of a motorway) as soon as possible and get some 

sleep. 

Modern commercial vehicles are often comfortable but don’t 

be tempted to relax too much! To combat the risk of falling 

asleep at the wheel, you should: 

Plan adequate rest breaks 
 

Get adequate sleep before starting out
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Not start a journey if already tired 
 

Avoid driving if you are not 100% fit
 


Never drive if affected by alcohol or drugs 
 

Avoid heavy meals before driving
 


Stay alert - remember that you will feel more sleepy
 


between 2pm and 4pm and early in the morning
 


Keep fresh air circulating in the cab - but remember
 


that cold air, in itself, will do little to stop you falling 

asleep 

If you feel sleepy at any stage when driving, as a temporary 

measure, stop and have a strong caffeine drink and a 

15-minute nap while you wait for the caffeine to take effect. 

The only cure for sleepiness is to get some sleep - turning 

up the radio and fresh air will do little to keep you going. 
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2.4 Alcohol 


FACT! Each year around 550 people are killed and 


around 14,000 injured in drink-drive related crashes. 


It is illegal to drive with more than 


A breath alcohol level in excess of 35 micrograms per
 


100ml
 


A blood alcohol level in excess of 80 milligrams per
 


100ml
 


A urine alcohol level in excess of 107 milligrams per
 


100ml 

The only safe option is NOT to drink if you plan to drive. Any 

amount of alcohol affects your ability to drive safely, not least 

because your reaction times and ability to judge speed and 

distances are impaired. Even a small amount of alcohol may 

INCREASE the risk of falling asleep at the wheel but 

DECREASE your awareness of falling asleep. 

Remember that alcohol can remain in your system for 

around 24 hours and drinks you consume during the course 

of an evening can potentially affect your fitness to drive the 

next morning. 

If you’re convicted of a drink-driving offence, you will lose 

your HGV entitlement - and with it your livelihood. 
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2.5 Drugs 
 

Driving while unfit through drugs - whether prescribed 

medication or illegal substances - is against the law and is 

just as dangerous as driving when drunk. Many companies 

have introduced random drug testing and registering positive 

for drugs in such tests can result in instant dismissal. 

Some drugs reduce concentration, encourage risk-taking or 

distort perception. Many cause excessive sleepiness the 

following day. 

This goes for prescription or off-the-shelf medicines, as well 

as illegal substances. Everyday cold or flu medicine can 

have side effects, for example drowsiness. So make sure 

you always read the labels of prescription or 

off-the-shelf medicines carefully. 

Remember - If you don’t feel well, don’t drive. 

2.6 Driver Development Training 

Driver training is important, both for new and existing drivers. 

Regularly updating your skills to take in safer and more 

efficient techniques will help: 

Reduce injuries and fatalities 
 

Reduce congestion resulting from accidents
 


Reduce damage to vehicles 
 

Reduce vehicle repair downtime
 


Reduce insurance premiums 
 

Comply with current legislation and the Highway Code
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Comply with your company’s policy for managing
 


occupational road risk 
 

Save fuel and reduce the amount of CO2 produced by 

your vehicle 

There are many courses available to help you develop new 

skills. 

Safe and Fuel Efficient Driving (SAFED) training is aimed at 

improving driving techniques of HGV drivers. It provides 

training and development for existing drivers through 

instruction relating to vehicle and road craft. 

From September 2009 the Driver Certificate of Professional 

Competence (CPC) qualification requires all category C and 

D licence holders to undertake 35 hours periodic training 

over 5 years and new drivers must complete the Driver CPC 

initial qualification in order to drive professionally. 

Remember that you shouldn’t undertake a work activity, 

operate equipment or drive a vehicle without appropriate 

training. Many of the organisations listed in Appendix 1 can 

provide further information on skills development. 
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3 Know Your Vehicle
 


Know how your vehicle works and spot any problems before 

you set off. 

Defects or problems should always be recorded and 

reported as the Vehicle and Operator Services Agency 

(VOSA) undertakes regular checks on vehicle maintenance 

and defect reporting arrangements. They also have the right 

to stop vehicles on the road, carry out spot checks and issue 

prohibition notices if necessary. 

3.1 Safety Checks 

Important checks should be carried out before starting a 

journey. You don’t have to be a mechanic to do these - they 

are easy and help prevent serious accidents. 

You should do a walk-round check of your vehicle before 

each journey because as a driver you are legally 

responsible for: 

Checking the vehicle is roadworthy 
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Ensuring that any equipment, fittings and fixtures
 


required are present and serviceable
 


Not driving the vehicle if faults are present
 


You should also conduct an in-cab safety check. This helps 

ensure your own safety as well as that of passengers and 

other road users. 

Never begin a journey with a defective warning device or 

when a warning is showing. If a warning light shows while 

you are driving, stop immediately and seek professional 

help. 

A daily walk-round and cab checklist can be found in 

Appendix 3. 

3.2 Brakes 

Check your brakes before each journey: 

Air brakes - listen for the hiss of air leaks and watch out for 

low pressure being indicated on your dashboard gauges. 

Hydraulic braking systems - inspect the hydraulic fluid 

level at the reservoir. 

If you have ABS (anti-lock) brakes and a trailer, you need to 

check that the system is connected and working correctly. 

See the VOSA publication Your Guide to ABS and EBS and 

Appendix 1 for more information. 

FACT! Planning journeys and anticipating road hazards
 

will help remove the need for harsh braking.
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Find out whether your vehicle's braking system has a 

manual or automatic draining arrangement. If it is manual, 

you should know who is responsible for draining the system 

and ensure that it is done regularly - especially during cold 

weather to prevent ice forming in the system. 

If you have to break quickly and you have ABS fitted, apply 

and maintain maximum force to the brake pedal. Don’t pump 

the brake pedal - this just reduces the effectiveness of the 

ABS system. 

If you don’t have ABS fitted, rapid pumping of the brake 

pedal during heavy decelerations will help prevent wheel 

lock. 

3.3 Couplings 

There are two types of coupling for drawing trailers: 

A 'fifth' wheel, fitted to articulated vehicles
 


A drawbar coupling, fitted to a rigid vehicle
 


Carry out safety inspections on such couplings regularly. If 

there is any sign of damage DO NOT start your journey. 

FACT! Maintenance should be carried out once a month 

or every 10,000 kilometres. 

3.4 Cruise Control 

If you have cruise control available, use it correctly. Do not 

use it to brake or accelerate, as you are not in control of the 

vehicle when you do so. 
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Cruise control improves fuel efficiency by delivering the right 

amount of fuel for the given situation. 

Remember - Don’t lose concentration and keep observing 

the road. 

3.5 Fuel Leaks and Spillages 

Diesel spillage is dangerous to other road users, particularly 

motorcyclists. Check your system regularly from the fuel 

tank to the engine to ensure that: 

The fuel filler cap is fastened securely 
 

The seal in the cap is not damaged or missing 
 

There is no fuel leak in the system
 


There are no defects that could cause a fuel leak 
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Remember - Fuel expands when hot. If you overfill the 

tank it can leak through the breather, causing a hazard 

and wasting both fuel and money. 

3.6 Gears 

Choose the right gear for your driving situation at all times. 

Lower gears may only be necessary if the vehicle is loaded 

or climbing a steep gradient. 

Plan ahead before junctions, when approaching a hazard or 

when manoeuvring to avoid dangerous situations. 

Never ‘coast’ with the clutch pedal depressed or leave the 

gear lever in neutral. This is especially dangerous with air 

brakes, as you lose the pressure in the braking system. 

3.7 Lights 

Lights are a major reason for failure at a vehicle’s annual 

test. Headlamps are the most common source of problems, 

with many failures due to headlamps being misaligned. 

Check all your lights are working and clean, including 

indicators, brake lights, fog lights, reverse lights and 

headlights. It’s unsafe to travel if any of these are dirty or 

broken. 

When driving at night or in winter conditions take the 

opportunity to check your lights at the end of each rest 

period before you start driving again. 
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3.8 Mirrors 
 

Before starting your journey, 

check your mirrors are in the 

correct position for you to see 

around the vehicle. Make full use 

of your mirrors before making a 

manoeuvre. 

Be aware of blind spots, both for 

you and others. Make sure any 

close-proximity and wide-angle 

mirrors are properly adjusted so 

that you can see - for example, cyclists on the nearside of 

the vehicle. Keep a defensive space around your vehicle at 

all times to enable you to react. 

FACT! You should use your mirrors frequently so that you 

always know what is happening around you. 

3.9 Reflectors 

Make sure the LONG VEHICLE or chevron marker plates on 

the back of your vehicle and the reflectors on the back and 

side are present, visible and clean. This helps other road 

users identify your vehicle in poor visibility. 
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4 Plan Ahead 
 

Before starting a journey, plan your route, including rest 

breaks, and identify any potential hazards. This minimises 

the risk of suddenly encountering dangerous situations. 

4.1 Route Planning 

Planning your journey helps you choose the safest and most 

efficient route. Always plan an alternative route to allow for 

accidents or bad weather. Try to avoid congestion at peak 

times. The length, width, weight and height of your vehicle 

will sometimes dictate the route you take. 

FACT! Getting lost wastes fuel and money. 


Be aware of the dangers of unauthorised parking - if you 

need to rest overnight make sure you choose a safe and 

secure site to avoid falling victim to crime. 
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4.2 Forward Planning 
 

Use the advantage of your elevated position in the cab to 

look as far ahead on the road as possible. Plan ahead for 

manoeuvres, understand the road and consider other road 

users at all times. 

4.3 Speed Limits 

Speed is a major factor in many accidents. The greater the 

speed, the higher the likelihood of a severe accident. 

FACT! Observing speed limits is your responsibility. 


Speeding is illegal, dangerous and puts lives at risk. Speed 

limits exist for your protection and that of other road users. 

Your vehicle may have a speed limiter set for motorway 

speed limits. Watch your speed carefully within lower speed 

limits. 

More information can be found in the Highway Code which is 

available at 

www.direct.gov.uk/en/TravelAndTransport/Highwaycode 
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5 Loading Arrangements
 


Understand the load you are carrying and the hazards 

involved. Take time to assess potential dangers and what 

you need to do to complete your journey safely and 

efficiently. Get into the habit of checking the safety of the 

load several times during your journey. 

More information can be found in the HSE guide ‘Getting to 

Grips with Manual Handling’ 

5.1 Loading and Unloading 

Do not cause a hazard by loading or unloading where there 

are yellow markings on the kerb and signs advising of 

restrictions. Check an up-to-date edition of the Official 

Highway Code for details of signage and always be aware of 

local loading and unloading restrictions. 

5.2 Load and Vehicle Height 

FACT! Every year around 2,000 HGVs or vans hit railway 

or motorway bridges. 

If you drive a vehicle with a travelling height of over 3 metres 

(10 feet) you must ensure that the correct overall travelling 

height of the vehicle is displayed inside the cab for you to 

see while driving. 

FACT! Know the height of your vehicle and its load; don’t 

guess. 
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Plan your route to avoid low bridges and overhead 

structures. A height notice may not be required if you’re 

carrying enough documentation about the choice of routes. 

Be aware that some SatNavs do not programme bridge 

heights into their systems! 

5.3 Weight of Load 

Ensure your vehicle is not overloaded, either by gross 

weight or in terms of individual axle loads. You can find out 

the weight at your company’s weighbridge or a public one. 
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5.4 Load Restraint
 

When securing a load you need to take into account such 

factors as: 

The nature of the load
 


The suitability of the vehicle
 


The stability of the load 
 

The type of restraint
 


The condition of the restraint, i.e. wear and tear
 


Protection from the weather
 


Prevention of theft
 


Ease of delivery
 


When restraining a load, be aware of the centre of its gravity. 

Remember that movement of the load in transit will affect the 

way the vehicle handles and responds to the controls - the 

restraint should always be used to ensure the load is secure 

during braking and steering. 

Remember also that the load must not endanger any other 

road users. As a driver you are responsible for the load and 

will be held accountable if any part of it falls from the lorry 

during transit. This applies even if you did not load or fit the 

restraints yourself. 
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5.5 Dangerous Goods
 

There are a wide range of products classified as 'dangerous 

goods'. You can usually recognise them by hazard warning 

diamonds on packages, drums and tanks. 

Such goods are subject to special packaging, marking, 

loading, safety equipment and documentation requirements. 

You must have received relevant training and instruction to 

deal with dangerous goods - many loads require you to hold 

an ADR vocational training certificate and some are subject 

to special security arrangements. The ADR certificate is 

administered by the Scottish Qualifications Agency (SQA) 

(See Appendix 1).    

If in doubt about a load, ask your manager for advice. 

5.6 Liquid Loads 

Driving a vehicle with a liquid load presents its own 

difficulties and risks. 

Risks you should be aware of are: 

Roll-over: tackling roundabouts at a speed of around
 


25mph can cause a tanker to overturn if a quarter-turn 

too much is applied to the steering wheel 

Wave effect: when you relax the footbrake after
 


braking there is a danger that the motion in the liquid 

load could force your vehicle forward 

Venting: some products are vented to release excess
 


pressure but many are not. Know and follow the 

correct practice for your product and tanker 
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Leaks: before starting a journey, check that there are
 


no leaks from the tank, valves or pipe work
 


Dangerous goods: you will need the appropriate
 


vocational training certificate – otherwise you will be 

acting illegally 

5.7 Forklifts and Lifting Equipment 

There are no government licences for 

operating lifting equipment (including 

forklifts). However, the law requires 

that operators are given adequate 

training by their employer. 

The Health and Safety Executive 

(HSE) recognises various bodies as 

competent to train instructors and to 

train, test and certify operators for 

rider-operated lift trucks. For more 

information, contact the HSE (see 

Appendix 1). 

5.8 Further information 

For more information on load safety, see Safety of Loads on 

Vehicles Code of Practice, 2002, ISBN 011 552547 5. Visit 

www.tso.co.uk or call 0870 600 5522 to obtain a copy. 
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6 Look Around You 
 

Make yourself comfortable and safe when travelling. Be 

aware of how your vehicle and your driving affects your 

surroundings. 

FACT! 22% of all HGV accidents are a result of the driver 

failing to look properly! 

6.1 Mobile Phones 

It is illegal to use a hand-held mobile phone or similar 

devices such as satellite navigation equipment while driving. 

You must maintain control of your vehicle at all times. Even 

hands-free kit is a distraction! Mobile phones can make you: 

Less aware of what’s happening around you 
 

Miss road signs 

Lose good lane position and 

 

 

PA (see Appendix 1) or visit 

steady speed 

Tailgate the vehicle in front

React more slowly 

Enter unsafe gaps in traffic

Feel more stressed 

For more information, contact RoS

www.dft.gov.uk/think 

FACT! If you use a mobile phone you are four times more 

likely to crash. 
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6.2 Radio 
 

The radio in your cab can update you on:
 

Traffic conditions
 


Accidents
 


Weather conditions
 


This helps you plan the safest and most efficient route. Just 

don’t let it distract you or others: 

Don’t have it on too loud
 


Turn it off when loading or unloading
 


6.3 Passengers 

If you have a passenger, make sure they are safe, with their 

seatbelt on. Do they know the dangers of distracting you 

while driving? 

Before carrying passengers, especially children, make sure 

your insurance allows it. 
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6.4 Seatbelts
 

You and your passengers must wear seatbelts if they are 

fitted - it’s the law. There are some exceptions, including for 

holders of medical exemption certificates, while reversing 

and for goods vehicle drivers making collections or deliveries 

with less than 50 metres between stops. Children can’t travel 

unless you have seatbelts or child seats fitted. 

Sit as far back as possible from the steering wheel or 

dashboard to reduce the chance of serious injury if you have 

an accident. 

For more information, visit www.dft.gov.uk/think 

6.5 Hanging Clothes 

Don’t hang clothes up inside the cab if they might obstruct 

your view. Remember that clothes that do not initially get in 

the way may still swing forwards or backwards during heavy 

braking or acceleration in such a way as to block your vision. 
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6.6 Windows 
 

Vehicle and trailer theft is common. Make sure that all doors 

and windows are secure when leaving your vehicle or when 

sleeping in the cab. 
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7 The Right Moves
 


Manoeuvring your truck can be difficult. Be aware of hazards 

in the yards you deliver to and always ask for guidance if 

you deliver to somewhere for the first time. 

7.1 Observation 

There are blind spots around the sides of your vehicle and to 

your rear - be aware of other vehicles and pedestrians 

before they enter these blind spots. Pay particular attention 

to cyclists and motor cyclists who might have crept up along 

side you when you turn left into another road. 

7.2 Overtaking 

Always plan an overtaking move. Look well ahead for: 

Oncoming traffic
 


Bends
 


Junctions
 


Other vehicles overtaking
 


Hills
 


Know the speed of the vehicle in front. How long will it take 

to overtake? Do you have enough time? When travelling at 

speed your vehicle is most stable travelling in a straight line. 

Sudden steering movements can cause displacement of 

your load. 
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This can shift the balance of your vehicle and make it 

unstable so always plan your manoeuvre in advance. Make 

sure it is smooth and controlled. 

FACT! It is dangerous to cut in on a vehicle too early after 

overtaking it. 

7.3 Parking 

Know the length, width, and height of your vehicle before 

parking. Be aware of potential hazards around you. Know 

where you can park according to the Highway Code and 

local signposting. These laws are there for your safety! 

You must have lights on when parked on the road or in a 

lay-by at night. In a clearly lit lorry park, however, you can 

switch your lights off. 

When connecting or disconnecting a trailer, have you 

engaged the parking brakes on both truck and trailer to 

prevent your vehicle from rolling away? 

Keep yourself and your load safe by making sure your 

vehicle is secure from theft and vandalism at all times. 

7.4 Reversing 

Reversing can be dangerous, especially for pedestrians, 

cyclists and other vehicles in the area. Look out for them and 

make sure they know you are reversing. Audible devices 

signal you are reversing, but you still need to look around 

before and during reversing. Use assistance if available. 

Using assistance to reverse a vehicle in no way questions 

your ability to drive. On the contrary it shows a high level of 

professional behaviour. 

28
 



7.5 Lane Discipline 
 

Keep left unless overtaking. Trucks are not allowed in the 

extreme right-hand lane on three or four-lane motorways. 

Remember the drill - mirror, signal, manoeuvre - before 

moving out. On motorways, watch out for vehicles in the 

right-hand lane moving back to the left as you pull out. 

Remember also that most other vehicles are faster than you. 
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8 Weather Permitting  
 

Make sure that you, your vehicle and your goods arrive 

safely at your destination. Listen to weather reports and 

warnings and don’t set off if you are unprepared. Make 

safety checks and alterations to your vehicle to allow for the 

weather. 

8.1 Fog 

Fog affects visibility and judgement of speed and distance. 

Slow down, use dipped headlights and keep a safe gap 

between vehicles. 

If fog is likely to develop overnight or during the course of 

your journey, you should consider whether or not your 

journey is really necessary. If it becomes so thick that you 

can’t drive safely, you will be a hazard to others. You may 

also have to drive so slowly that you exceed your driving 

hours. 

Only use high intensity rear fog lights when visibility falls 

below 100 metres. Turn them off when visibility improves 

they dazzle those behind you. 
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Protect yourself and your vehicle in poor visibility - make 

sure your lights, lenses and reflectors are all clean and 

working correctly. 

8.2 High Winds 

Check weather reports before your journey and keep 

checking while driving, especially if you drive: 

A high sided vehicle
 


A vehicle with a curtainsided body or trailer
 


A vehicle transporting portable buildings
 


An unladen vehicle 
 

Always listen to advance warnings and avoid dangerous 

conditions wherever possible. When planning your route, 

note any locations that might be particularly exposed to high 

winds, such as: 

High level bridges
 


Exposed viaducts
 


Exposed stretches of roads
 


Other road users are also affected by wind, especially when 

overtaking. Check your mirrors regularly.  
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8.3 Ice
 

In cold weather, especially at night, ice can easily form on 

roads. Indications of ice include: 

A feeling of lightness on the steering wheel
 


Frost on the hard shoulder
 


Even without these, remember that when it’s cold (+3° C or 

less), any rain on the road could quickly turn to ice. 

Remember also that conditions in your cab can be 

deceptive. Listen to weather reports and use the outside 

temperature gauge in your cab (if have one) to monitor 

conditions on the road. 

In icy conditions, braking distances increase dramatically. 

Allow 10 times the normal distance and avoid sudden 

braking, steering and acceleration to reduce the risk of 

losing control. 

8.4 Rain 

FACT! Over a quarter of all accidents happen in the rain! 


Rain reduces visibility so use headlights to see and be seen. 

Rain also reduces traction, so slow down and maintain a 

safe distance between yourself and other vehicles, using the 

“4 second rule” as a minimum. 

Make sure any spray suppression equipment on your vehicle 

is in good order. Make sure your wipers can clean the 

windscreen properly and that the windscreen wash reservoir 

is filled with the right fluid, especially in winter. 
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Make extra allowances for other road users, too - they will 

have more difficulty seeing you in heavy rain and spray.  

8.5 Snow 

Snow reduces both traction and visibility dramatically - so 

slow down and use dipped headlights. Allow much greater 

stopping and separation distances than normal. 

Remember that road markings and signs may be hard or 

impossible to read in snowy conditions. So take extra care, 

pay attention to the road and approach junctions slowly.  

Deep snow can close roads. DO NOT use these roads. 

Plan your journey and listen to weather reports. This helps 

you avoid dangerous conditions. 

FACT! Training and preparation is vital. Don’t go out in
 


severe conditions without being properly prepared.
 


33
 




9 Respect
 


Always set a good example to other drivers - you are the 

professional driver so make sure you set a good example. 

Bear in mind how other road users may see you. Those who 

have no knowledge of driving large commercial vehicles may 

wonder why you’re making certain manoeuvres. Losing your 

temper won’t make your life easier. Keeping your emotions 

under control makes driving safer and less stressful for you. 

9.1 Other Road Users 

Know how your vehicle affects other road users. Turbulence 

from your vehicle, for example, affects: 

Pedestrians
 


Cyclists
 


Motorcycles
 


Cars
 


Horse riders
 


Caravans
 


Buses
 


Other goods vehicles
 


There is limited visibility around your vehicle, due to its size. 

So use your mirrors and check any blind spots thoroughly 

when manoeuvring (see section 6). 

Remember that pedestrians may step onto the road without 

warning. Be aware that your mirrors could strike a 

pedestrian just as hard as the main body of your vehicle. 
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9.3 Tailgating 

Cars, motorcyclists and cyclists can all be intimidated by the 

size of vans and trucks. Driving close behind a vehicle 

causes accidents. It restricts other motorists’ view and gives 

you less room to stop in an emergency.  
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9.4 Retaliation 

Other road users may not drive courteously. Resist the 

temptation to retaliate in such situations. Always drive: 

Courteously
 


With anticipation
 


Calmly, allowing for others’ mistakes
 


With full control of your vehicle
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10 Safety Champions 
 

As a professional driver you cannot afford to forget safety, 

even when you are under pressure. A safety champion is 

someone who: 

Understands safety issues and how dangerous
 


situations occur while driving
 


Respects other road users at all times
 


Updates their skills regularly
 


Takes responsibility for their actions behind the wheel
 


With their extra skills and knowledge a professional driver 

has the ability to influence other road users in the way they 

drive. Acting as safety champions they can ensure that 

everyone benefits from a safer, more pleasant and secure 

driving environment. 
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Appendix 1: Useful Contacts
 


Freight Best Practice 

Tel: 0845 877 0 877 (Order Hotline) 

www.freightbestpractice.org.uk 

Department for Transport 

Tel: 020 7944 8300 

www.dft.gov.uk 

British Vehicle Rental and Leasing Association 

Tel: 01494 434 747 

www.bvrla.co.uk 

Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport 

(UK) 

Tel: 01536 740 104 

www.ciltuk.org.uk 

Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency 

Tel: 0870 240 0009 (Driver Enquiries)  

Tel: 0879 240 0010 (Vehicle Enquiries) 

www.dvla.gov.uk 

Driving Standards Agency 

Tel: 0115 936 6666 

www.dsa.gov.uk 

Freight Transport Association 

Tel: 01892 526171 

www.fta.co.uk 

Health and Safety Executive 

Tel: 08701 545500 

www.hse.gov.uk 
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Highways Agency 

Tel: 08457 50 40 30 

www.highways.gov.uk 

www.heavygoodvehicle.com 

Institute of Advanced Motoring 

Tel: 020 8996 9600 

www.iam.org.uk 

MET Office (Weather Advice) 

Tel: 0870 900 0100 

www.met-office.gov.uk 

SQA Examination Board 

Tel:  0845 279 1000 

www.sqa.org.uk 

Road Haulage Association 

Tel: 01932 841515 

www.rha.net 

RoadSafe 

Tel: 020 7344 1605 

www.roadsafe.com 

Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents 

(RoSPA) 

Tel: 0121 248 2000 

www.rospa.com 

Safe and Fuel Efficient Driving (SAFED) 

Tel: 0870 190 8440 

www.safed.org.uk 

Skills for Logistics 

Tel:  0870 6060440 

www.skillsforlogistics.org 
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Transport Research Laboratory
 

Tel: 0800 056 500
 

www.trl.co.uk/fea
 

Unite
 

Tel: 020 7611 2500
 

www.unitetheunion.org.uk
 

United Road Transport Union (URTU)
 

Tel: 0800 52 66 39
 

www.urtu.com 
 

Vehicle and Operator Services Agency
 

Tel: 0870 6060440
 

www.vosa.gov.uk 
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Work Contacts 

Main Reception: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Traffic Office: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Warehouse: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Service Bay: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Name: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Name: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Name: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 
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Appendix 2: Further Information
 


If you would like to find out more about safe driving, the 

following publications are a good place to start. Contact the 

issuing organisation to get hold of a copy. 

Driving at work – managing work-related road safety
 


http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg382.pdf (HSE)
 


Your guide to ABS and EBS (VOSA)
 


The BVRLA guide to driving at work (BVRLA)
 


Health and safety in road haulage (HSE)
 


Drivers’ hours and tachograph rules for goods
 


vehicles in the UK (VOSA)
 


Guide to maintaining roadworthiness (VOSA)
 


Check it out (DVD – VOSA)
 


WorkSmart videos for workplace transport (series of
 


video clips available via the web – HSE)
 


The official guide to hazard perception (DVD: ISBN
 


0115528652 – DSA)
 


Work related road safety (DfT)
 


The Official Highway Code (ISBN 0115528148 - DSA)
 


The Official DSA guide to Driving Goods Vehicles
 


(ISBN 0115528997 - DSA)
 


Driving for Work: Mobile Phones (RoSPA)
 


Driving for Work: Safer Speed Policy (RoSPA)
 


Workplace Transport Safety (HSE)
 


Safety of Loads on Vehicles – Code of Practice (DfT)
 


Code of Practice: Coupling or Uncoupling and Parking
 


of Large Goods Vehicles and Trailers (HSE/IRTE)
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SAFED for HGVs: A Guide to Safe and Fuel Efficient 

Driving for HGVs (Freight Best Practice) 

SAFED for Vans: A Guide to Safe and Fuel Efficient 

Driving for Vans (Freight Best Practice) 

CPC Driver training (Transport Office) 

www.transportoffice.gov.uk/cpc 
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Appendix 3: Daily Checks
 


The daily walk-round, which should take place before you begin a journey, 

should cover: 

brakes lights 

tyres windscreen, wipers and washers 

wheels (inc. nuts) oil / fuel (levels) 

horn mirrors 

tachograph / speedometer  body (damage / dents) 

number plates reflectors and reflective plates 

exhaust system any coupling gear 

speed limiter correct plating 

seat belts proper licensing with appropriate 

valid disc displayed 

any load being carried 

When in the cab you should check: 

 the driving seat is correctly adjusted for you 

 all interior and exterior mirrors are clean and adjusted 

appropriately for you 

 lenses and screens of rear-view video equipment are clean and 

 clear 

 gauges and warning systems are working 

 the parking brake is applied 

 the gear selector is in neutral 

 you have sufficient fuel for your journey 

 your mobile phone is switched off or diverted to voicemail 

 the doors are working and are closed 

 the in-cab height indicator 

Before starting your journey be sure that you understand: 

 the controls of the vehicle 

 the vehicle size – weight, height and width 

 handling 

 brakes – whether ABS is fitted 
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11 Driver Personal Log 

Fill in your daily hours and expenses and keep for your own 

personal records (please photocopy for repeated use) 

Date…………….. 

Day 

Monday 

Hours Vehicle Job Details Expenses 

Tuesday 

Wednesday 

Thursday 

Friday 

Saturday 

Sunday 

Total 

45
 




            

         

 

Printed in the UK on paper containing at least 75% recycled fibre. 

FBP1083 © Queens Printer and Controller of HMSO 2007. 

www.freightbestpractice.org.uk 
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 Developing SKILLS 

Freight Best Practice publications, including those listed below, can be 

obtained FREE of charge by calling the Hotline on 0845 877 0 877 or by 

downloading them from the website www.freightbestpractice.org.uk 

Saving FUEL  

Fuel Saving Tips 

This handy pocket guide is ideal for 

drivers and managers looking for 

simple ways to reduce fuel 

consumption. 

Case STUDIES  

Companies and Drivers Benefit 

from SAFED for HGVs: A 

Selection of Case Studies 

This selection of case studies 

describes the benefits experienced by 

15 companies and their drivers who 

have taken part in the Safe and Fuel 

Efficient Driving (SAFED) scheme. 

Equipment & SYSTEMS  

Telematics for Efficient Road 

Freight Operations 

This guide provides imformation on 

the basic ingredients of telematics 

systems, highlights how to use this 

technology, the information obtained 

from it and how to select the right 

system for your needs. 

Performance MANAGEMENT  

Fleet Performance Management 

Tool Incorporating CO2 Calculator 

This tool has been designed to help 

fleet operators improve their 

operational efficiency using key 

performance indicators (KPIs) to 

measure and manage performance. 

KPIs include costs, operational, 

service, compliance, maintenance 

and environmental. 

Transport Operators’ Pack -TOP  

TOP provides practical ‘every day’ 

support material to help operators 

implement best practice in the 

workplace and acts in direct support of 

tasks essential to running a successful 

fuel management programme. 

Developing SKILLS  

Drive It! DVD 

A 25 minute driver focussed DVD 

helping to inform and educate on 

methods of improving efficiency.  It 

contains several examples and case 

studies of how companies improved 

their own operational efficiency. 

April 2009.
 


Printed in the UK on paper containing at least 75% recycled fibre.
 


FBP1008 © Queens Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009.
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